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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Fishing Creek Schoolhouse, built in 1888, is a one story, clapboard,
structure with corner boards. 1Its main facade has three bays and two windows
which are four over four, double hung. There are three double pairs of four over
four double hung windows on the east side of the building. There are no windows
on the west side, although a small porch with a shed roof has been added. The
structure has a brick foundation.

The building has a gable roof with return ends. Situated in the front peak
of the gable is a small belfry with a semicircular opening topped with a pediment.

Below the belfry is a semicircular insert plaque containing the name and

date of construction of the school. The roof is now covered with asphalt
shingles.

The main entrance to the structure is in the principal facade through what
was once double doors, but is now replaced with a single door. Above the door is
a transom and a wooden awning. The awning is a later addition. The original
shutters on the two front windows have been removed.

Interior

When used as schoolhouse the building had one large interior room and a
small cloak room situated near the main entrance. Long benches, for the very

young children, and desks were the furnishings.

In 1929 the structure was converted into a private dwelling. The interior
changes constituted the addition of partitions to make three bedrooms, a living
room and kitchen. The kitchen equipment (sink and cabinets) was installed near
the rear of the house. The cloak room in the front of the building was removed.

The original ceiling is in place. The interior walls, originally painted,
have since been repainted.

Overall, the alterations to the interior and the minor alterations to the
exterior have not diminished the recognition of the structure as a schoolhouse.
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The second one-room schoolhouse that was built in Fishing Creek played an
important role in accommodating and training the young in the school district.
An equally important function the building served was as a meeting place for
various community activities. Architecturally, the form of the building reflects
a common 19th century approach of adapting the basic church form for use as a
school.

The community Fishing Creek, also known as Norbury Landing, was initially
the site of the second oldest mill in the county. The mill was a fulling mill,
c. 1735, which manufactured homespun cloth.

The earliest school in Fishing Creek was on what is now called Fulling Mill
Road. This first schoolhouse, constructed in the early 1800's, was little more
than a log cabin and had deteriorated badly by the mid to late 1800's. It was
described in a local paper as "a disgrace to the neighborhood". Consequently,
because of the deteriorated condition of the building and for the following
reasons the community felt the need for a new school building.

The foremost reasons for the construction of a new schoolhouse (the second
Fishing Creek Schoolhouse) lies in the fact that in the late 1800's a very high
priority was placed upon the educating and training of the young. This is
clearly illustrated in the intervention of the public by setting regulations on
the attendance requirements, the duration of school year, and through the use of
public taxes for education.

Secondly, need for a more structurally sound schoolhouse in Fishing Creek
was due to the schoolhouse's use as a community center. Various community
activities such as the Zobo Band, the Church Junior League and neighborhood
Saturday evening meetings were held in the district school. Community musical
activities increased after 1900, when an organ was purchased for use in the
school.

The deed for the new school building was recorded October 18, 1888. This
building is located at Bayshore Road and became the second school building in
District 23. All the students in the vicinity were accommodated in this building
until 1921. 1In 1921 some students were transferred to other schools, but the
schoolhouse continued to operate until 1929 when it was converted to its present
use - a private dwelling.
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Architecturally, the style and plan of the schoolhouse demonstrates the
phenomenon of style transference from a known and accepted form (church type)
to that of a school. This occured as a result of the limited selection of styles
in the popularly used 19th century architecture pattern books which did not
provide many examples of schools, and the very limited supply of pattern books
specifically containing examples of schools.

As a result of its association with the statds educational development and
community activities in Fishing Creek, the second Fishing creek school deserves
recognition through placement on the National Register.



